
Democratic Services 
 
 

 

 

 
 

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
Tuesday 12 December 2023 at 6.30 pm 

 
Place: Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall 

 
Online access to this meeting is available on YouTube: Link to online broadcast 

 
The members listed below are summoned to attend the Strategy and Resources Committee 
meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this 
agenda. 
 

Councillor Neil Dallen (Chair) 
Councillor Hannah Dalton (Vice-
Chair) 
Councillor Chris Ames 
Councillor Shanice Goldman 
 

Councillor Graham Jones 
Councillor Alison Kelly 
Councillor Robert Leach 
Councillor Alan Williamson 
 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Chief Executive 
 
For further information, please contact democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 
01372 732000 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

No emergency drill is planned to take place during the meeting. If the fire alarm sounds 
continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the 
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital 
that you follow their instructions.   

 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 

 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but 
move to the assembly point at Dullshot Green and await further instructions; and 

 Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so. 

 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLU1GWtI_OsxUcyTb2u4WGNNV7n-MGYVaZ


 

Public information 

Please note that this meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom and will be available to observe 
live using free YouTube software. 

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda. A limited number 
of seats will be available on a first-come first-served basis in the public gallery at the Town Hall. If you wish 
to observe the meeting from the public gallery, please arrive at the Town Hall reception before the start of 
the meeting. A member of staff will show you to the seating area. For further information please contact 
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000. 

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the Council’s 
website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes. 

Agendas, reports and minutes for this Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app for iPad, 
Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information regarding this 
Committee, please email us at democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk. 

 

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 

There are matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose confidential or 
exempt information under the provisions of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). The Committee is likely to resolve to exclude the press and public during discussion of these 
matters by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted. 

 

Questions and statements from the Public 

Questions and statements from the public are not permitted at this Special meeting of this Committee. 
Annex 4.2 of the Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Operating Framework sets out which Committee 
meetings are able to receive public questions and statements, and the procedure for doing so. 

 

Filming and recording of meetings 

The Council allows filming, recording and photography at its public meetings. By entering the Council 
Chamber and using the public gallery, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings. 

Members of the Press who wish to film, record or photograph a public meeting should contact the 
Council’s Communications team prior to the meeting by email at: communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 
 
Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting. The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non-handheld devices, including tripods, will not be allowed.

mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/council/about-council/governance/Annex%204-2%20-%20Protocol%20Members%20of%20Public%20Speaking.pdf
mailto:communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting. 
 

2. LOCAL PLAN BUDGET RESOURCES  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
 The report provides an updated financial position regarding progressing the 

Epsom and Ewell Local Plan (2022-2040) towards submission and subsequent 
adoption in accordance with the timescales defined in the recently published 
Local Development Scheme (November 2023).   
The Licencing and Planning Policy Committee on the 22 November 2023 
agreed to report the estimated shortfall in funding for completing the Local Plan 
to the Strategy and Resources Committee with a request to secure funding for 
the £629,000 shortfall. 
 

3. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  (Pages 13 - 14) 
 
 The Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to pass a resolution to 

exclude the Press and Public from the meeting in accordance with Section 100A 
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that the business involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended) and that pursuant to paragraph 10 of 
Part 2 of the said Schedule 12A the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

4. COMMERCIAL PROPERTY  (Pages 15 - 40) 
 
 This report has not been published because the meeting is likely to be closed to 

the press and public in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted/nature of the proceedings.  The report deals with information relating 
to the financial or business affairs of the Council and the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption currently outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 

LOCAL PLAN RESOURCES 

 

Head of Service: Justin Turvey, Interim Head of Place 
Development 

Wards affected: (All Wards); 

Urgent Decision? No 

If yes, reason urgent decision 
required: 

 

  

 

Summary 

The report provides an updated financial position regarding progressing the Epsom and 
Ewell Local Plan (2022-2040) towards submission and subsequent adoption in 
accordance with the timescales defined in the recently published Local Development 
Scheme (November 2023).   

The Licencing and Planning Policy Committee on the 22 November 2023 agreed to 
report the estimated shortfall in funding for completing the Local Plan to the Strategy and 
Resources Committee with a request to secure funding for the £629,000 shortfall. 

 

 

Recommendation  

The Committee is asked to: 

(1) To agree to allocate £629,000 funding from the Corporate Projects Reserve 
to enable the completion of the Epsom and Ewell Local Plan (2022-2040).  

 

1 Reason for Recommendation 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the committee on the 
Local Plan budget following the public consultation on the draft Epsom 
and Ewell Local Plan (Regulation 18) that was undertaken between 1 
February and 19 March 2023.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 
1.2 Following the closure of the public consultation an extraordinary Council 

meeting was held on the 22 March 2023 where the decision was made to 
pause the Local Plan and to allow specified tasks to be undertaken. On 
the 24 October 2023 the Local Plan was un-paused at an extraordinary 
meeting of full Council and subsequently a revised Local Plan timetable 
(the Local Development Scheme) was approved by the Licencing and 
Planning Policy Committee on the 22 November 2023.  

1.3 On the 22 November 2023, the Licencing and Planning Policy Committee 
agreed to report the estimated shortfall in funding for completing the Local 
Plan to this committee with a request to secure funding for the £629,000 
shortfall. 

2 Background 

2.1 On the 21 June 2022, the Licencing and Planning Policy Committee 
(LPPC) considered a report on the Local Plan funding update, which 
identified a potential shortfall in funding for 2023/24 and 2024/25. The 
report identified: 

 That this Committee would be asked to approve two fixed term 
contract posts, the first of which is a principal policy officer (ending 
early May 2024) and a planning policy officer post (ending early 
December 2024).  

 As of June 2022, a total of £517,830 approved budget remained to 
complete the Local Plan, and that the estimated costs of 
progressing the Local Plan to Regulation 19 stage (excluding 
staffing costs) would consume most of this budget. 

2.2 The report concluded that the funds would not be adequate to cover the 
examination in public and in particular the Planning Inspectorate fees, 
which was a known position prior to the publication of the report. In 
addition, the report noted that any deviation from the approved timeline 
(the Local Development Scheme) that was agreed by Licencing and 
Planning Policy Committee on 26 April 2022 would have cost implications. 

Position as of December 2023 

2.3 Following the decision by Council to pause the Local Plan for a period of 
seven months, an updated timetable for preparing the Local Plan was 
approved by the Licencing and Planning Policy Committee on the 22 
November 2022. The revised timetable anticipates the submission of the 
Local Plan in May 2025. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 
Staffing 

2.4 The planning policy team remains fully staffed, with four permanent team 
members (two of which are part time) and two fulltime members on fixed 
term contracts. As noted in para 2.1 above the two fixed term posts end in 
2024 and therefore the capacity of the team to progress the Local Plan 
will be impacted if the contracts are not extended. 

2.5 To retain experience, knowledge and capacity in the team, the costs of 
extending both contracts up until 31 December 2026 would be 
approximately £252,000. 

Expenditure since June 2022 

2.6 Since the June 2022 report considered by LPPC on the Local Plan 
budget, the Local Plan has been progressed to public consultation 
(Regulation 18 Stage) which was supported by a wide range of evidence 
base, and Table 1 below summarised the costs incurred by the Council 
since this time. 

Table 1 – Local Plan Costs incurred since June 2022 

Cost Type Spend rounded to 
the nearest thousand 

Evidence Base Development £213,000 

Consultation  £37,000 

Total £250,000 

2.7 It is important to note that the figures detailed in Table 1 do not include 
any costs that were funded through external funding, for example grants 
from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC). Without these sources of funding, the costs to the Council 
would have been significantly higher. 

2.8 The June 2022 LPPC report estimated the costs of progressing the Local 
Plan to Regulation 18 stage would be a minimum of £272,000. Table 1 
demonstrates that costs to get to Regulation 18 came under this forecast, 
namely because some evidence base was instead undertaken in house or 
evidence deferred to be completed following the Regulation 18 
consultation for cost efficiency reasons. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 
2.9 To progress the Local Plan to Regulation 19 Stage it is estimated that a 

further £340,000 will be required to finalise the Local Plan evidence, 
obtain legal advice and undertake consultation on the Pre-Submission 
Local Plan. The evidence base that is required includes an updated 
Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 
(both of which are legal requirements), a Transport Assessment and an 
updated Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. 

2.10 Following the Regulation 19 Stage is the Submission Stage and 
Examination in Public Stage, the costs of which are difficult to determine 
as they are dependent on the length of the examination and the number of 
hearings, the number of issues and matters raised, and the level of expert 
input required into the examination process from our team of external 
specialist consultants. 

2.11 The cost for the examination can only therefore be estimated, however 
legal advice, legal representation before the Inspector (as and when 
required) the costs of the programme officer (an impartial third party 
appointed organise and administer the Examination of the Local Plan 
under the direction and guidance of the appointed planning Inspector), the 
planning inspectorates fees and fees arising from external support at the 
examination need to be budgeted for. The estimated costs for this stage 
are £305,000. 

2.12 In the June 2022 LPPC report we set out that we would update our 
projected examination costs to reflect those incurred by other Local Plan 
Authorities. However, due to the number of authorities both locally and 
nationally pausing their Local Plans at Examination stage, we have been 
unable to determine the more accurate forecasts as pausing at 
examination will impact on costs. 

Forecast spend and shortfall 

2.13 Table 2 below summarises the budget available to progress the Local 
Plan and what has been spent so far, and, the predicted shortfalls to 
reach both Regulation 19 Stage and conclude the Local Plan 
Examination. 

Table 2 – Available budget shortfall (figures rounded to the nearest 
£1,000) 

Budget Available as of June 2022 £518,000 

Costs Incurred to Regulation 18  £250,000 

Budget Remaining as of November 2023 £268,000 

Forecast cost of progressing to Regulation 19  £340,000 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 

Projected shortfall to Regulation 19 -£72,000 

Forecast costs of Examination £305,000 

Predicted shortfall to conclude Examination of the Local 
Plan (excluding costs of extending 2 fixed term 
contracts) 

-£377,000 

Predicted shortfall to conclude Examination of the Local 
Plan (including extending two fixed term contracts) 

-£629,000 

2.14 Based on the above, the shortfall for completing the Local Plan is 
estimated as £629,000 including the costs of extending the fixed term 
contracts. It is crucial that the Council ensures that sufficient resources 
are available to ensure that the Local Plan can be submitted to the 
government and examined by the planning inspectorate. 

3 Risk Assessment 

Legal or other duties 

3.1 Equality Impact Assessment 

3.1.1 None arising from this report. 

3.2 Crime & Disorder 

3.2.1 None arising from this report. 

3.3 Safeguarding 

3.3.1 None arising from this report. 

3.4 Dependencies 

3.4.1 Delivering a robust Local Plan and in line with the timeline is 
dependent on retaining sufficient staffing levels and funds to secure 
the external technical support required. 

3.4.2 There is a minimum that is required in order to prepare a robust 
local plan. To do more for example, a wider scope, or extending the 
timetable, all have additional cost and human resource implications. 
Any deviation from the Local Development Scheme (November 
2023) will impact on the resources to complete a local plan, as it is 
proposed that any plans submitted after the 1 July 2025 will need to 
be prepared under the new system set out in the Levelling up and 
Regeneration Act and future secondary legislation. Progressing the 
Local Plan under the new system is likely to increase time and 
financial costs even further.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 
3.5 Other 

3.5.1 None arising from this report. 

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 This report sets out the financial implications of the Local Plan and 
highlights an estimated £629,000 shortfall in funds to support the Local 
Plan beyond the Regulation 19 stage through to the Examination in 
Public. 

4.2 Allocating £629,000 from the Corporate Projects Reserve will reduce the 
available balance for other projects from £2.98m to £2.35m.  

4.3 Should the separate request to use this reserve at Agenda item 4 also be 
approved, the reserve balance will further decrease to £1.85m. 

4.4 Council has previously agreed that the reserve should hold a minimum 
balance of £1m to plan for unforeseen corporate projects and risks. 

4.5 Utilising £629,000 from the reserve would reduce the Council’s annual 
treasury management income by £31,450, assuming a 5% return on 
balances held. 

4.6 Section 151 Officer’s comments:  

4.7 In March 2021, Strategy & Resources Committee approved an additional 
budget envelope of £742,000 for the delivery of the Local Plan. 

4.8 This report sets-out that the Council will be unable to deliver the Local 
Plan project within the agreed budget, and identifies an additional funding 
requirement of £629,000 to progress the plan to completion. 

4.9 With the Council facing a projected revenue budget deficit of £1.1m from 
2024/25 (as reported to Strategy & Resources Committee in July 2023) 
and reserves likely to come under substantial pressure in future years, 
officers should seek to progress the Local Plan using existing in-house 
resources wherever possible, or seek new external funding opportunities 
where available. 

4.10 The Council has previously agreed that progress of the Local Plan 
programme will be reported twice yearly to Licensing & Planning Policy 
Committee, and that should additional budgetary implications arise, these 
should be reported to Strategy & Resources Committee for consideration. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 
4.11 It should also be noted that legal support and therefore costs for providing 

such professional support are likely to rise beyond these estimates costs 
should the council face an Examination in Public attended by parties 
represented by legal representatives. It is too early in the process to know 
and what impact that may have upon the current budget so it is merely 
referred to as a potential risk area for increased costs once a Plan has 
been submitted for examination.  

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 sets out that each local 
planning authority must identify their strategic priorities and have policies 
to address these in their development plan documents. The Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 stipulates 
that a local planning authority must complete a review of a Local Plan 
every five years, starting from the date of adoption of the Local Plan. 

5.2 The Levelling up and Regeneration Act came into force on 26 October 
2023 and will have implications for plan making, specifically for Local 
Plans submitted after 30 June 2025. Secondary legislation will be required 
to implement the majority of the reforms relating to planning and an 
updated National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is due to be 
published in the near future. 

5.3 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report however this 
committee will need to take into account the Council has a statutory 
obligation to maintain a balanced budget and to ensure that the costs of 
the Local Plan is funded within agreed budgets and policy framework and 
in accordance with the provisions set out in the Council’s Constitution.  

5.4 Legal Officer’s comments: None arising from the content of this report.  

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships 

6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The new Local Plan will contribute towards 
delivering the Council’s Visions and objectives identified in its Four-Year 
Plan  

6.2 Service Plans: Preparation of the Local Plan is included within the current 
Service Delivery Plan. 

6.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: The Local Plan 
itself has a key role in implementing a number of key objectives that are 
set out in our Climate Change Action Plan. 

6.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: The Local 
Plan itself has a key role in delivering sustainable development. There are 
no Community Safety Implications. 

6.5 Partnerships: The Council has a duty to cooperate with relevant 
stakeholders in the preparation of a Development Plan. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
12 December 2023  

 
7 Background papers 

7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows: 

Previous reports: 

 Local Development Scheme – LPPC – 22 November 2023 

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29341/Local%20Development%20Scheme
.pdf 

 Local Plan Budget Update – LPPC – 22 November 2023 

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29343/Local%20Plan%20Budget%20Repo
rt%20Update.pdf 

 Local Plan Funding Update – LPPC 21 June 2022 

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s23945/Local%20Plan%20Funding%20upd
ate.pdf 

 Unpausing the Local Plan - Extraordinary Council meeting – 24 
October 2023 

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s28945/Unpausing%20the%20Local%20Pla
n.pdf 

 

 

Other papers: None 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29341/Local%20Development%20Scheme.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29341/Local%20Development%20Scheme.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29341/Local%20Development%20Scheme.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29343/Local%20Plan%20Budget%20Report%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29343/Local%20Plan%20Budget%20Report%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s29343/Local%20Plan%20Budget%20Report%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s23945/Local%20Plan%20Funding%20update.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s23945/Local%20Plan%20Funding%20update.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s23945/Local%20Plan%20Funding%20update.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s28945/Unpausing%20the%20Local%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s28945/Unpausing%20the%20Local%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s28945/Unpausing%20the%20Local%20Plan.pdf


Strategy and Resources Committee   

12 December 2023   

 

 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Committee may pass a 
resolution to exclude the public from the Meeting for Part Two of the Agenda on the grounds 
that the business involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended) and that pursuant to paragraph 10 of Part 
2 of the said Schedule 12A the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

  
The following documents are included on Part Two of the agenda and have not been 
published: 
 

Item 04 – Commercial Property 

The report deals with information relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council.  
 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 4By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
to the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
to the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Local Plan Budget Resources
	3 Exclusion of Press and Public
	4 Commercial Property
	Commercial Property Appendix 1


